Stantec NANISIVIK NAVAL FACILITY PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS Revision 3

Appendix F

Spill Contingency Plan



Nanisivik Naval Facility

Spill Contingency Plan Revision 2

Prepared for: Defence Construction Canada 350 Albert Street Ottawa ON K1A 0K3

Prepared by: Stantec Consulting Ltd. 400-1331 Clyde Road Ottawa ON K2C 3G4

July 2013

Stantec

NANISIVIK NAVAL FACILITY SPILL CONTINGENCY PLAN

Revision 2

INITIAL SPILL RESPONSE

ENSURE SAFETY

A. RESPOND QUICKLY

- Ensure safety of all persons.
- 2. Identify hazards and risks.
- 3. If safely feasible, stop the release.
- 4. Call for help.
- 5. Contain the spill if safely possible.

B. CONTAINING THE SPILL

- 1. Ensure safety of all persons
- 2. Identify what will be affected.
- 3. Determine the cause(s) for movement of the released substance (wind, slope, water)
- 4. Identify the best location to contain the spill (avoid water bodies).
- 5. Consideration must be given to a back-up plan.

C. REPORTING PROCEDURE

- 1. The Nunavut Spill Report form must be completed to the extent possible prior to submission. The Nunavut Spill Report form is attached in Attachment A.
- 2. Contact the Nunavut 24-hour Emergency Spill Report Line at 867-920-8130.
- 3. If fax is available, the Nunavut Spill Report form should be faxed to 867-873-6924. Or, if email is available, the Nunavut Spill Report form should be sent to spills@gov.nt.ca.

Table of Contents

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1.1
2.0	PURPOSE AND SCOPE	2.1
3.0	POTENTIAL CONTAMINANTS	3.1
3.1	STORAGE ON-SITE	3.1
	3.1.1 Fuel	3.1
	3.1.2 Oily Wastewater	3.3
	3.1.3 Chemicals and Hazardous Materials	3.3
4.0	POTENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS	
5.0	MITIGATION MEASURES	5.1
6.0	ACTION PLAN	6.1
6.1	INITIAL ACTIONS	6.1
6.2	CONTAINING AND CONTROLLING THE SPILL	6.1
	SPILL REPORTING	
64	TRANSFERRING, STORING, AND MANAGING SPILL-RELATED WASTE	6.5
6.5	RESTORING AFFECTED AREAS	6.5
7.0	EMERGENCY CONTACTS	
8.0	TRAINING	8.1
9.0	REFERENCES	9.1
Atta	achment A – Nunavut Spill Report Form	

1.0 Introduction

Stantec Consulting Ltd. (Stantec) has prepared this Spill Contingency Plan (the Plan) on behalf of the Department of National Defence (DND) and Defence Construction Canada (DCC). This Plan is intended to be a living document.

DND proposes to construct and operate a deep-water docking and refuelling facility at Nanisivik, Nunavut (Nanisivik Naval Facility; the Project). The Project is on 43.7 hectares (ha) of Federal Crown land at approximate latitude 73°N and longitude 84°W, at the northwestern end of Baffin Island. DND and DCC are committed to implementing appropriate procedures to reduce the risk of spills during all phases of the Project. This Plan conforms closely to the Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada Guidelines for Spill Contingency Planning (Indian and Northern Affairs Canada 2007).

REVISION: July 2013 1.1

2.0 Purpose and Scope

The proposed Project will serve primarily as a deep-water berthing and refuelling facility to serve the Arctic Offshore Patrol Ships (AOPS), Canadian Coast Guard and other government ships during the navigable season in the Northwest Passage (i.e., July to October). The nearest community to the Project site is Arctic Bay, which is approximately 33 km southwest of the facility and accessible via a gravel road.

The primary objective of this Spill Contingency Plan is to help reduce or eliminate any adverse environmental effects that may result from a spill of hazardous substances during the construction and operation of the Nanisivik Naval Facility. The Plan proposes guidelines for the safe handling, storage, use and disposal of potentially hazardous materials as well as spill prevention measures.

Access to the Spill Contingency Plan is imperative to help prevent spills and ensure appropriate action in response to a spill. A copy of this Plan will be kept at every location where fuel is stored. Additional copies should also be retained by the contractor and Nanisivik Naval Facility Manager.

REVISION: July 2013 2.1

3.0 Potential Contaminants

During construction and operation there are several contaminants that may be used for equipment and by crews working on the Project. The responsibility of spill prevention will be managed by the contractor during construction phases of the Project. The responsibility of spill prevention will be managed by DND during operation of the Project. Some of the anticipated contaminants are listed below:

- Gasoline
- Diesel
- Aviation Fuel
- Naval distillate
- Lubricating oils and grease
- Antifreeze and other coolants
- Hydraulic oil
- Motor oil
- Batteries
- Janitorial supplies
- Paint and corrosion protection coatings

A release of contaminants could unintentionally occur on land or in water. Possible mechanisms for a release of hazardous material include:

- Leaks or ruptures of fuel storage tanks
- Valve or line failure in systems, vehicles or heavy equipment
- Improper storage resulting in overfilling or heat expansion
- Vehicular accidents
- · Spill during transfer or contaminant
- Vandalism

3.1 STORAGE ON-SITE

Below are the details of the anticipated storage facilities, methods of disposal and preventative measures incorporated into the design of the Project to prevent spills.

3.1.1 Fuel

The Nanisivik Naval Facility will serve as a deep-water refuelling station for the AOPS; therefore, bulk storage of naval distillate will be required, along with diesel and aviation fuel to support operation of the facility. Quantities of fuel stored at the facility, and the location of the storage, is outlined in Table 1.

REVISION: July 2013 3.1

Table 1 - Fuel Storage Capacity at the Nanisivik Naval Facility

Location	Fuel	Volume (L)	Storage				
	Naval distillate	7.5 million	Two 22-m diameter vertical tanks				
Bulk Liquids Storage Facility	Diesel	100,000	Two 3-m diameter horizontal tanks				
	Aviation fuel	3,000	15 drums				

Naval distillate will be stored in two 22 m diameter aboveground single-walled, vertical tanks. Each naval distillate tank will have 3,750,000 L storage capacity. This will provide the Nanisivik Naval Facility with the capacity to store 7.5 million litres of naval distillate (a one year fuel supply). Piping and pumping will be designed to allow transfer of naval distillate between the two tanks. Naval distillate will be transferred from the Wharf receiving facility to the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility for storage, and from the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility to refuel vessels at the Wharf. Flow metering equipment will be installed to monitor and control the flow rate.

A one and a half to two year supply of diesel (approximately 100,000 L) will be stored in two pre-fabricated 3 m diameter aboveground double-walled, horizontal tanks. Each diesel tank will have 81,000 L storage capacity. This will provide the Nanisivik Naval Facility with the capacity to store 162,000 L of diesel. Piping and pumping will be designed to allow transfer of diesel between the two tanks, from the Wharf receiving facility to the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility and from the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility to the electrical power generation modules. A dispenser will be installed for fuelling mobile equipment and flow metering equipment will be installed to monitor and control the flow rate.

Each naval distillate tank at the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility will have a separate secondary containment cell. Containment cells will consist of compacted gravel containment berms lined with an arctic-rated geomembrane liner covered with a 0.15 m layer of compacted gravel. The containment berms for the naval distillate storage tanks will be 1.8 m high. Both diesel tanks will be contained in one common cell consisting of an engineered steel containment dike system. The height of the containment walls for the diesel storage tanks will be 0.7 m above the surrounding grade. The containment cells are sized to 110% of the capacity of the respective tank. Leak detection systems and rainwater and melt water collection systems will be installed. A portable pump will be used to manage accumulated water from bermed areas.

Naval distillate and diesel pumps will be located at the northeast corner of the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility. Pipelines will connect the Wharf receiving facilities to the pumps: 250 mm diameter for naval distillate and 150 mm diameter for diesel. The pumps (30 hp for naval distillate and 7.5 hp for diesel) will be mounted on an outdoor structural steel platform and enclosed by a 0.25 m containment berm lined with an arctic-rated geomembrane liner covered with a 0.15 m layer of compacted gravel. Pipelines will be above-ground, supported by concrete foundations on grade and grounded.

Welded steel drip pans will be installed to contain leaks and drips under the Wharf ship-to-shore connection, at all hose connection points and under sample points. Mobile equipment diesel refuelling stations and all areas for storage of hydrocarbons will be equipped with a containment area and liner.

Instrumentation consisting of local indication and manual tank level indication will be either temperature durable or removable for winter storage. All PLC controls for fuel transfers will include a removable system that can be stored securely in a heated area for the winter.

Forty drums of petroleum, oils and lubricants and fifteen drums (3,000 L) of aviation fuel will be stored in the POL storage area within the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility. A portable pump will be used for fuel transfer. The POL storage area will be secure, lined and bermed.

The Bulk Liquids Storage Facility will be a secure, fenced area of approximately 800 m².

3.1.2 Oily Wastewater

The facility will provide a minimum of 10,000 L (50 drums) of storage capacity for oily wastewater (OWW) transferred from AOPS vessels and generated at the site from the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility operations and containment berms. OWW drums will be stored in the petroleum, oils and lubricants (POL) storage area within the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility. Oily wastewater will be collected and shipped off-site to an approved location in southern Canada at the end of the summer season for treatment.

Collection sumps for rainwater and melt water will be located in each secondary containment cell in the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility. Water collected in the sumps will be tested, and if necessary, drained through an oil-water separator. OWW will be stored in the POL storage area and uncontaminated water will be released on land to a location approved by Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada (AANDC), as indicated on the water licence. A portable pump will be used to manage accumulated water.

3.1.3 Chemicals and Hazardous Materials

In addition to the fuels and oily wastewater described previously, there are several other chemicals that are expected to be stored and used at the Nanisivik Naval Facility such as batteries, lubricants, paints etc.

Petroleum, oils and lubricants will be stored in original shipping drums and pails on pallets or metal racks at the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility. The POL storage area within the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility will be approximately 150 m² with storage capacity for up to 250 drums of POL, OWW and aviation fuel. A curbed concrete containment area or welded steel drip pans will provide secondary containment.

All other chemicals will be stored in appropriate hazardous material storage containers in the location of their use at the general purpose storage building, which will be located within the fenced boundaries of the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility.

4.0 Potential Environmental Effects

A release of any type of hazardous materials has the potential to bio-accumulate in the environment and cause illness or death to the biological components directly or indirectly via feeding and interaction with environmental media.

Potential discharge events depicted as the worst case scenario are presented in Table 2 for the primary hazardous material stored on-site. A discharge rate for each material is not specified, as the flow would vary greatly depending on the source and puncture.

Table 2 - Location, Hazardous Material, Potential Discharge Event, and Worst Case Scenario Discharge Volume

Location	Fuel	Potential Discharge Event	Worst Case Discharge Volume
	Naval distillate	1) Over pumping of fuel	7.5 million L / 2 vertical tanks
Bulk Liquids	Diesel	Over pumping or fact Overfilling tank Leaking tank	100,000 L / 2 horizontal tanks
Storage Facility	Aviation fuel	4) Puncture	3,000 L / 15 drums

Wastewater, petroleum, oils, lubricants and the other materials listed in Section 3.0 could potentially leak. However the quantity would be quite limited and localized, and accordingly the risk from a release impacting the environment would be low.

5.0 Mitigation Measures

Fuel transfer has the potential to have an environmental effect on water quality.

Fuel transfer to and from vessels at the Wharf, as well as between the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility and the Wharf will be conducted by qualified personnel following standard procedures. The facility design will include appropriate fuel transfer equipment to safely receive fuel from tankers and to refuel naval vessels. All vessels will deploy a spill boom prior to all refuelling operations; the boom will be in place for containment in the unlikely event of a spill. An Environmental Management System will be developed and implemented to avoid accidental releases of petroleum hydrocarbons from the facility. Leak detection systems will be installed on storage tanks and will be monitored to detect leaks. All fuel storage areas will have secondary containment and sumps to collect oily wastewater for treatment. In the event that an accidental release of petroleum hydrocarbons occurs, the facility will have emergency shut-off that can be activated at the Bulk Liquids Storage Facility, at the Wharf and from vessels. An Emergency Response Plan (under separate cover) will be developed and implemented as part of the environmental Management System and Spill Response equipment will be available to contain and clean up the spill, whether it occurs on land or in the marine environment at the Wharf.

Wastewater from sumps during construction and operation can have an adverse environmental effect on water and sediment quality. Prior to discharge, all wastewater will be tested to ensure that it complies with the criteria outlined in the Water Use Licence issued by the Nunavut Water Board.

Leaks or spills from storage of petroleum hydrocarbons and fuel transfer can have an adverse environmental effect on soil quality. Environmental effects of spills and leaks will be avoided or reduced through implementation of an Environmental Management System, monitoring of leak detection systems, secondary containment and sumps to collect oily wastewater for treatment, emergency shut-off systems, an Emergency Response Plan and availability of spill response equipment.

Spill kits will be stored at every location there is fuel, or hazardous materials stored. The type of supplies and quantities will be determined based on the location of the spill kit and volume of material stored.

6.0 Action Plan

6.1 INITIAL ACTIONS

- Ensure safety of all persons. The most important consideration when responding to a release is ensuring safety of all personnel. All actions must only be undertaken if it can be done in a safe manner.
- Identify hazards and risks. Determine the source and identify the release substance.
- If safely feasible, stop the release (e.g., turn off pump). Utilize the supplies in the spill kit to stop the release. If the released substance is gasoline or aviation fuel, ensure all ignition sources are eliminated and shut off machinery in the vicinity. If contact with the fuel is a risk, Tyvek suits and chemical master gloves from the spill kit must be donned immediately.
- Use deterrent measures (e.g., ATVs, motorboats) to prevent birds and/or wildlife from entering the spill site, if applicable.
- Call for help. The facility manager must be notified regardless of the size of the release.
 Contact with the manager via two way radio (a radio must be carried by all employees and contractors if they are not accompanied by an employee).
- Contain the spill if safely possible. Utilize the supplies in the spill kit (e.g., place sorbent
 materials over the released substance). The most effective technique will depend on the
 situation of the spill.

6.2 CONTAINING AND CONTROLLING THE SPILL

The methods for containing and controlling the spill will vary depending on the situation, media contaminated, weather, etc. The objective of spill containment is to prevent or minimize dispersion. The following is a basic, step-by-step approach to containing and controlling the spill:

General Spill Containment Procedures

The successful containment of a spill on land or water depends on a variety of factors including: ground cover and topography, hydrogeology, solubility of the material, viscosity of the liquid, water currents, soil permeability and climatic conditions.

The following general guidelines will be followed for containment of spilled materials.

1. Assess the safety hazards of the situation.

REVISION: July 2013 6.1

- 2. Remove sources of ignition, if safe to do so.
- 3. Identify the product, stop source and physically contain spill as soon as safe to do so.
- 4. Avoid use of water or fire extinguishing chemicals on nonpetroleum product spills unless it is necessary to control a fire or prevent an explosion, since many chemicals react violently with water and chemical extinguishing agents may release toxic fumes. In addition, chemicals may be soluble in water and dispersal makes containment and clean-up more difficult.
- 5. Minimize traffic on contaminated soils.
- Use natural depressions or berms constructed with materials and equipment in proximity to the site to physically contain a spill on land. Deployment of booms will be necessary on water.
- 7. Clean-up will not be attempted without advice from the responsible manager/contractor.

General clean-up steps for specific accidents are outlined below.

Spills Adjacent to or into a Waterbody

At a minimum, the following general guidelines will be followed for containment and clean-up of most hazardous materials if spilled adjacent to, or into, a waterbody.

- 1. Construct berm and/or trenches to contain spilled product prior to entry into a waterbody.
- 2. Deploy booms, skimmers, sorbents, etc., if feasible, to contain and recover spilled material from waterbody. (Note: All vessels will deploy a spill containment boom prior to all refuelling operations).
- 3. Recover spilled product.
- 4. Clean-up contaminated area including downstream shorelines.
- Dispose of heavily contaminated soil and vegetation at an approved facility. On lightly contaminated soil areas where in situ restoration is feasible, fertilize and then cultivate beyond depth of contamination. Repeat as required.

Spills on Snow/Ice

At a minimum, the following general guidelines will be followed for containment and clean-up of most hazardous materials if spilled onto snow or ice.

 Once a spill is identified, all sources of ignition should be turned off (e.g., no smoking, shut off engines).

- 2. The spilled material (e.g., gasoline, diesel, antifreeze, etc.) should be identified, if possible.
- The affected area should be secured, ensuring the area is safe for entry and does not represent a threat to human health and safety of the spill responders. Public access of the area should be restricted.
- 4. If possible, identify where the spill is coming from (the source). Determine if the spill is still occurring (i.e., still leaking) or if the spillage has stopped. If the spill has not stopped, determine if it is safe to stop or control the spill (e.g., plug hole, close valve, upright container).
- 5. If the spill is too large to be controlled with the spill materials at hand, contact the responsible manager/contractor and report the spill, particularly since a spill occurring on snow or ice presents the potential for immediate access of contaminants into waterways.
- 6. If the spill is small enough to be controlled with the spill response materials at hand, prevent spilled contaminants from spreading or entering waterways by using sorbent materials or a snow/soil dyke down slope from the spill. This is especially the case with liquid contaminants (e.g. gasoline, diesel).
- 7. If possible with the spill response materials at hand, clean up the remaining spilled contaminant and store contaminated materials in a secure container for disposal. Impacted snow should also be stored in drums for proper disposal.

Spot Spills

Since effects from small spot spills can generally be minimized if appropriate actions are implemented, all small spills of fuels or noxious materials must be reported immediately to the responsible manager/contractor.

At a minimum, the following general guidelines will be followed while cleaning up spot spills of fuel or other hazardous materials.

- 1. Suspend activity in the immediate vicinity of the spot spill until permission to resume activity has been granted by the responsible manager/contractor.
- The responsible manager/contractor will determine appropriate methods to remove or restore contaminated soils. Soil and vegetation heavily contaminated with petroleum products will be disposed of at an approved facility.
- 3. Locations where spot spills occur are to be flagged or otherwise marked to ensure that post-spill monitoring of the site can be undertaken.

4. Lightly contaminated soil areas where restoration is feasible will be fertilized and then cultivated to a depth below the depth of contamination, then repeated as required.

Once the spill has been controlled and further spreading prevented, contact the responsible manager/contractor if not already done so. The responsible manager/contractor is responsible to report the spill to the 24-Hour Emergency Spill Report Line.

Birds and Wildlife

Birds and wildlife must be protected in the event of a spill. If applicable, deterrent measures (e.g., ATVs and motorboats) will be used to prevent birds and/or wildlife from entering the spill site. In the event of a spill affecting birds and/or wildlife, the appropriate authorities will be contacted. Once appropriate permission and direction is obtained, contaminated birds and/or wildlife will be captured and contained; excessive handling will be avoided. Contaminated birds and/or wildlife will be transported to a treatment facility. First aid will be avoided unless directed by the appropriate authorities. If mortalities occur, the appropriate authorities will be contacted prior to disposal.

6.3 SPILL REPORTING

All spills must immediately be reported to the designated manager and/or contractor. As required by Nunavut, they will be responsible for reporting the spill to the Nunavut 24-Hour Spill Report Line at 867-920-8130.

The Nunavut Spill Report form must be completed (Attachment A) and is available in every spill kit, as well, the designated manager and/or contractor will have copies. The completed form must be submitted via email or fax to the Nunavut 24-Hour Spill Report Line. The report should also be submitted to DND via fax or email and kept on record.

It is required of any person reporting a spill to disclose as much information as possible regarding the incident. All knowledge regarding the spill should be described in the initial spill report. Note that reporting the spill should not be delayed due to lack of information, as further information may be provided later. Important items to document and report regarding the spill include:

- Occurrence date and time
- Geographic place
- Product spilled
- Quantity of product spilled
- Source and cause of the spill
- The status of the spill (i.e., continuing or stopped)
- Area of contamination
- Factors affecting the spill or recovery
- Hazards to person, property or environment
- Action taken, and assistance required

6.4 TRANSFERRING, STORING, AND MANAGING SPILL-RELATED WASTE

Following spill containment and reporting, the released substance must be recovered and disposed of in an appropriate manner. Generally, clean up begins at the edge of the spill and then moves inward. For smaller spills, sorbent materials and hand tools (cans, shovels, and rakes) are used, whereas for larger releases on land or ice, a pump with a hose attached to a drum is utilized.

Along with the released substance, contaminated objects such as environmental media, material used for the construction of dykes or weirs, and absorbent materials must be recovered and disposed of properly. Tools and sorbent materials used in the containment of petroleum must be sealed in waste oil containers and disposed of via approved disposal methods. Tools from the spill kits must be cleaned, decontaminated and returned or replaced back to the spill kit. Spill kits must be resupplied.

6.5 RESTORING AFFECTED AREAS

In consultation with Nunavut Department of Environment and DND, an appropriate reclamation plan will be determined. A site specific study may be necessary in order to ensure a safe level of decontamination is attained. Remediation may include contouring, replacement of soil, and revegetation.

7.0 Emergency Contacts

The list of emergency contacts will be updated by the construction contractor to provide emergency contact information during construction of the Nanisivik Naval Facility.

Nunavut 24-Hour Spill Report Line	Phone: 867-920-8130
,	Fax: 867-873-6924
	Email: spills@govt.nt.ca
Nunavut Emergency Management 24-Hour Line	1-800-693-1666
Canadian Coast Guard Marine Spill Report 24- Hour Line	1-800-265-0237
Environment Canada 24-Hour Line	867-920-8130
Department of Fisheries and Oceans	867-979-6274
Site Medic	TBD
Site Manager	TBD
Environmental Coordinator	TBD
DND - Rodney Watson, Project Manager	613-943-8277
(during construction)	RODNEY.WATSON@forces.gc.ca
MARLANT – Maritime Forces Atlantic, CFB Halifax (during operation)	TBD

REVISION: July 2013 7.1

8.0 Training

All employees and contractors working on-site for any phase of the Project must be familiar with the Spill Contingency Plan. Knowledge of the Plan will be required through a mandatory orientation session which will specify locations of spill kits and spill contingency action plans, contents of spill kits, Material Safety Data Sheets and education on completing the Nunavut Spill Report form. Training will include mock spill exercises, specific training to individuals that handle hazardous materials and on appropriate use of the spill kits.

Additional training such as First Aid and WHMIS will be required of all employees and contractors working on-site. Supervisors must have completed advanced level first aid training and transport of dangerous goods training.

The camp manager will have a record of all employees training dates, levels and expiration dates. Annual refreshers regarding this Spill Contingency Plan will be conducted following the mandatory orientation.

REVISION: July 2013 8.1

9.0 References

Indian and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC). 2007. <u>Guidelines for Spill Contingency Planning</u> <u>Guidelines for Spill Contingency Planning</u>. Yellowknife, NT: Water Resources Division, INAC, 2007. Retrieved August 2011: www.ainc-inac.gc.ca

Nunavut Department of Environment. No Date. <u>Contingency Planning and Spill Reporting in Nunavut: A Guide to the New Regulations</u>. Retrieved August 2011: www.env.gov.nu.ca.

REVISION: July 2013 9.1

Attachment A

Nunavut Spill Report Form





Canad'ä

NT-NU SPILL REPORT

OIL, GASOLINE, CHEMICALS AND OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

NT-NU 24-HOUR SPILL REPORT LINE

TEL: (867) 920-8130 FAX: (867) 873-6924 EMAIL: spills@gov.nt.ca

REPORT LINE USE ONLY

											HEFORT LINE OUL OHLI
Α	REPORT DATE: MONTH DAY YEAR				U.I	ORIGINAL SPILL REF	PORT,	REPORT NUMBER			
В	OCCURRENCE DATE: MONTH - DAY YEAR		OCCURRENCE TIME		UPDATE # THE ORIGINAL SPIL	L REPORT					
С	LAND USE PERMIT NUMBER (IF APPLICABLE)				WATER LICENCE NUMBER (IF APPLICABLE)						
D	GEOGRAPHIC PLACE NAME OR DISTANCE AND DIRECTION FROM NAMED LOCA			OCATION		REGION □ NWT □ NUNAV	υτ	☐ ADJACENT JUF	RISDICTION	OR OCEAN	
_	LATITUDE					LONGITUDE					
E	DEGREES	MINUT		SECONDS		DEGREES MINUTES				ECONDS	
F	RESPONSIBLE PARTY OR VES						ESS OR OFFICE LOCAT	rion			
G	ANY CONTRACTOR INVOLVED)		CONTRACTOR	ADDRESS	ESS OR OFFICE LOCATION					
Н	PRODUCT SPILLED			QUANTITY IN LI	ITRES, KILO	RES, KILOGRAMS OR CUBIC METRES U.N. NUMBER					
П	SECOND PRODUCT SPILLED	(IF APPI	'LICABLE)	QUANTITY IN LI	ITRES, KILO	OGF	RAMS OR CUBIC METR	ES	U.N. NUMBER		
ļ	SPILL SOURCE			SPILL CAUSE					AREA OF CONTAMINATION IN SQUARE METRES		
J	FACTORS AFFECTING SPILL C	OR REC	OVERY	DESCRIBE ANY	'ASSISTAN	SSISTANCE REQUIRED HAZARDS TO PERSONS, PROPERTY OR ENVIRONMENT					
K											
L	REPORTED TO SPILL LINE BY POSITION			EMPLOYE	EMPLOYER LO			OCATION CALLING FROM		TELEPHONE	
М	ANY ALTERNATE CONTACT	P	POSITION		EMPLOYE				TERNATE CONTACT ALTERNATE TELEPHON CATION		ALTERNATE TELEPHONE
	REPORT LINE USE ONLY										
Ν	RECEIVED AT SPILL LINE BY	P	POSITION		EMPLOYER LO		LO	OCATION CALLED		REPORT LINE NUMBER	
1 //	<u>.</u>	S	TATION OPERATOR			YELLOWKNIFE, NT (867) 920-8130					
LEAD AGENCY DEC DCCG DGNWT DGN DILA DINAC DNEB DTC SIGNIFICANCE DMINOR DMAJOR DUNKNOWN FILE STATUS DOPEN DCLOS					US [] OPEN [] CLOSED						
AGE	AGENCY CONTACT NAME			CONT	CONTACT TIME REMARI		REMARKS				
LEAC	AGENCY										
FIRS'	T SUPPORT AGENCY										
SECO	OND SUPPORT AGENCY					_					
THIR	D SUPPORT AGENCY										

Stantec NANISIVIK NAVAL FACILITY PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS Revision 3

Appendix G

Emergency Response Plan



Nanisivik Naval Facility

Emergency Response Plan Revision 2

Prepared for: Defence Construction Canada 350 Albert Street Ottawa ON K1A 0K3

Prepared by: Stantec Consulting Ltd. 400-1331 Clyde Road Ottawa ON K2C 3G4

July 2013

Table of Contents

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1.1
2.0	PURPOSE AND SCOPE	2.1
3.0	POTENTIAL EMERGENCIES	3.1
4.0	ACTION PLAN	4.1
4.1	EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS	4.1
4.2	EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION	4.1
	ADVERSE / EXTREME WEATHER EVENT	
	FIRE	
4.5	FIRST AID / MEDICAL EMERGENCIES	4.2
4.6	VEHICLE ACCIDENTS	4.3
4.7	HELICOPTER ACCIDENTS	4.3
	VESSEL GROUNDING / COLLISION	
4.9	EVACUATION AND DESIGNATED ASSEMBLY POINTS	4.4
	EMERGENCY CONTACTS	
6.0	TRAINING	6.1
7 0	REFERENCES	7 <i>.</i> 1

1.0 Introduction

Stantec Consulting Ltd. (Stantec) has prepared this Emergency Response Plan (the Plan) on behalf of the Department of National Defence (DND) and Defence Construction Canada (DCC). The Plan is intended to be a living document. DND proposes to construct and operate a deepwater docking and refuelling facility at Nanisivik, Nunavut (Nanisivik Naval Facility; the Project). The Project is on 43.7 hectares (ha) of Federal Crown land at approximate latitude 73°N and longitude 84°W, at the northwestern end of Baffin Island. DND/DCC are committed to eliminating and/or minimizing risk and harm to environmental and human health in the event of an emergency during all phases of the Project.

1.1

2.0 Purpose and Scope

The primary objective of this Emergency Response Plan is to ensure that the Nanisivik Naval Facility responds appropriately and has effective measures to respond to an emergency. As such, this Plan provides guidance and actions important for the appropriate response to various medical emergencies at Nanisivik, Nunavut. The Plan identifies key tasks, lists available resources, and provides procedures to respond to an emergency such that safety hazards are removed or reduced.

REVISION: July 2013 2.1

3.0 Potential Emergencies

The following is a list of some potential emergencies that could be encountered during construction and operation of the Nanisivik Naval Facility. Spill Contingency, Waste Management and Wildlife Encounters are discussed under separate cover.

- Adverse / Extreme weather events (e.g. blizzard or white-out)
- Fire
- First Aid / Medical Emergencies
- Vehicle Accidents
- Helicopter Accidents
- Vessel Grounding/Collision

3.1

4.0 Action Plan

In the case of all general emergencies the following shall apply.

4.1 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

All Project/contractor vehicles will contain a list of emergency phone numbers, a two-way radio, bear spray and banger, a suitable fire-fighting kit, spill response kit and first aid kit. A list of detailed steps for securing a radio channel to talk directly to the responsible manager/contractor to obtain help and further instruction will also be included in every vehicle and person(s) leaving camp.

4.2 EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION

During all phases of the Project the responsible manager/contractor will utilize a sounding device to signal an emergency situation. For example, a bullhorn siren, a flare, or whistle could all apply given the particular situation.

A radio code will be used to isolate an uninterrupted radio channel for direct communication with the responsible manager/contractor and the emergency situation. If the emergency occurs within the camp site or at the wharf this step may not be necessary.

4.3 ADVERSE / EXTREME WEATHER EVENT

It is necessary to examine the methods of reducing environmental effects during adverse or extreme weather conditions. It is recognized that specific environmental mitigation is subjective and dependent upon specific conditions and the Project schedule.

Where adverse weather conditions and activities have the potential to cause, or are causing wind erosion, water erosion, excessive rutting, and/or the potential for harmful alteration, disruption or destruction (HADD) of fish and fish habitat, a "stop work" decision will be determined by the responsible manager/contractor until weather conditions abate or effective mitigation procedures have been implemented. The following represents a brief list of mitigative measures that may be applied should it be safe to do so:

- Tarp or tie-down items that might become airborne during high winds
- Stop any earth works as they may cause unnecessary erosion during heavy precipitation events
- Move heavy equipment to solid ground to avoid potential sinking during heavy precipitation events
- Seek shelter if conditions do not improve

4.4 FIRE

The following mitigation measures will be implemented in the event of a fire:

- 1. Sound alarm to notify camp/personnel and follow emergency evacuation procedures.
- 2. Commence fire suppression measures immediately upon detection of fire provided that fire conditions allow personnel to safely proceed.
- Report location of fire as well as size of fire and wind direction, to the responsible manager/contractor.
- 4. The responsible manager/contractor will report wild fires and relevant information to the applicable authorities.
- 5. The responsible manager/contractor will deploy fire-fighting equipment and crew to clear fire breaks or extinguish the fire directly if possible. All equipment and personnel shall be made available to control the fire. Effort of fire control will be limited, if warranted, due to safety issues and will take into consideration fire conditions, safety, fitness of personnel and equipment availability.
- 6. The responsible manager/contractor will inspect the fire site as soon as possible and take charge of directing suppression measures.
- 7. During construction, the contractor will be responsible for ensuring that the camp site is self-sufficient for fire suppression. Fire suppression measures shall continue until the fire is extinguished.
- 8. Moveable material, particularly explosive or flammable materials, vehicles, etc. will be promptly moved to a safe location whenever there is a possibility of being endangered by fire.
- 9. The responsible manager/contractor will ensure that all burning embers are extinguished and will monitor the burn area for smouldering material. Infrared scanning equipment will be employed to detect any hot spots (if applicable).

4.5 FIRST AID / MEDICAL EMERGENCIES

Emergencies requiring first aid can vary from mild to extreme. It is recommended that a contingency plan address all levels of accidents that may occur requiring various needs of first aid. All employees during construction and operation will have standard first aid response training and access to first aid supplies. A paramedic will be available on-site during construction. Medical personnel will be available on ships using the site during operation.

Spinal boards shall be kept at camps and near the helicopter landing area.

Rescue buoys, life preservers and throw-ropes will be mounted at various locations around the wharf in case of potential drowning.

Any person who discovers an individual in need of first aid or emergency medical attention will initiate a response action that will follow a general procedure:

- · Avoid danger to yourself, others and the environment
- Deliver first aid appropriate to the level of emergency, if safe to do so
- Report the type and location of the emergency to a supervisor and communicate situation to all other individuals on-site
- Evacuate the victim to shelter, if appropriate, until transport to medical assistance can be facilitated. The level of medical emergency may necessitate road and/or air transport to a southern hospital

Emergency situations at the Nanisivik Naval Facility may be exacerbated by extreme weather conditions; therefore an emergency supply of food and water should be kept on-site.

4.6 VEHICLE ACCIDENTS

There will be some vehicle traffic during construction and operation of the Nanisivik Naval Facility. Vehicle accidents may include single or multi vehicle incidents. The road from Arctic Bay will be used to commute between the facility and Arctic Bay and also for trucks transporting aggregates from the Quarry. Midsized to large trucks will be utilized for these activities. Radios will be used and call outs for incoming and outgoing traffic will be mandated. Speed limits will be strictly enforced. Vehicles will carry first aid and spill kits as well as an emergency supply of food and water for potential break-down events or becoming stranded due to vehicle break downs. Should injuries be sustained in a vehicle accident, the first responder to that event will follow the general procedure of a response action as discussed in section 4.5.

4.7 HELICOPTER ACCIDENTS

Response to helicopter incidents or accidents at the Nanisivik Naval Facility will follow the procedures of the Department of National Defence/Canadian Forces (DND/CF) Flight Safety (FS) Program, as stated in A-GA-135-001/AA 001, "Flight Safety for the Canadian Forces". Should injuries be sustained in a helicopter accident, the first responder to that event will follow the general procedure of a response action as discussed in section 4.5.

4.8 VESSEL GROUNDING / COLLISION

Individual ships will have their own emergency plan and standard operating procedures in the case of ship grounding or collision according to the International Safety Management Code (ISM) Code for the safe operation of ships and for pollution prevention.

4.9 EVACUATION AND DESIGNATED ASSEMBLY POINTS

Should an emergency situation escalate to a level beyond the ability of personnel to manage, an evacuation of the area may be required.

The responsible manager/contractor and all personnel will be instructed on emergency evacuation procedures and designated assembly points during initial site training. The designated emergency assembly points will be determined by the responsible manager/contractor and the emergent situation. All personnel are expected to know the designated assembly points for their respective areas. Any other personnel (i.e., visitors) onsite must be briefed on evacuation procedures and designated assembly locations prior to entry.

Maps showing evacuations routes and designated assembly locations will be placed in conspicuous locations (i.e., facilities, work areas). Information regarding emergency signals, procedures and responsibilities for personnel, and instructions on operating notification systems will also be included with the maps.

5.0 Emergency Contacts

The list of emergency contacts will be updated by the construction contractor to provide emergency contact information during construction of the Nanisivik Naval Facility.

Nunavut 24-Hour Spill Report Line	867-920-8130
Nunavut Emergency Management 24-Hour Line	1-800-693-1666
Canadian Coast Guard Marine Spill Report 24- Hour Line	1-800-265-0237
Arctic Bay RCMP (Emergencies)	867-439-1111
Arctic Bay RCMP (General Inquiries)	867-439-0123
Environment Canada 24-Hour Line	867-920-8130
Department of Fisheries and Oceans	867-979-6274
Site Medic	
Site Manager	
Environmental Coordinator	
DND – Rodney Watson, Project Manager (during construction)	613-943-8277 RODNEY.WATSON@forces.gc.ca
MARLANT – Maritime Forces Atlantic, CFB Halifax (during operation)	TBD

REVISION: July 2013 5.1

6.0 Training

In order to be ready for an emergency situation, a training program for all personnel has been prepared.

All people working on-site must be familiar with the emergency procedures. Knowledge of these procedures will be acquired through a mandatory orientation session and semi-annual training sessions which will specify locations of emergency response plans, emergency supplies kits, contents of emergency kits and Material Safety Data Sheets. Training will include mock exercises, instruction on fire suppression, lessons on handling techniques of hazardous materials and training on appropriate use of the emergency kits. Instruction regarding evacuation procedures, designated assembly points, and emergency communication will be provided during the training sessions. Additionally, training in advanced level of first aid and WHMIS is required of all employees and contractors working on-site.

The responsible manager/contractor will have a record of all employees' training dates, levels and expiration dates. Semi-annual refreshers regarding the procedures and responsibilities of the emergency response plans will be conducted following the mandatory orientation.

Additionally, mock drills will be held twice a year to allow employees to practice response skills.

REVISION: July 2013 6.1

7.0 References

Department of National Defence. 2007. A-GA-135-001/AA 001, "Flight Safety for the Canadian Forces".

Nunavut Department of Environment. No Date. <u>Contingency Planning and Spill Reporting in Nunavut: A Guide to the New Regulations</u>. Retrieved 3 August 2011: <u>www.env.gov.nu.ca</u>

REVISION: July 2013 . 7.1